PALLIPURAM FORT

OLDEST EUROPEAN STRUCTURE IN INDIA

By ‘A WANDERER”

AT the northern end of the
Island of Vypeen, situated in Tra-
vancore territory and overlooking
the estuary of the Periyar, stands
the tiny fortress of Pallipuram ov
Palliport, the oldest surviving piece
of European fortification in India,
reckoning from the day when
,Vasco de Gama first landed ab
Calicut in 1498.

Built by the Portuguese in 1507,
the fortress at Palliport was nof

the earliest in point of construc- |

tion, for it was preceded 1n 1503 by
Fort Manuel at Cochin. But while
there is no trace left of Fort
Manuel (the present fort of Cochin
being of muech later origin) and also
of the fort at Cranganore which
was built almost at the same time
as the one at Palliport to guard the
entrance to the backwater, the
fortress at Palliport has survived
the onslaught of time, and stands
even to-day a mute, gaunt witness
of those early days when the newly
acquired habit of Europeans of
eabing meat dressed with spices
made trade in these commodifies so
profitable that it drove the adven-
turers of one European nation affer
another to India, regardless of the
perils ot a long and protracted sea
voyage. '

AN INTERIOR VIEW OF PALLIPURAAM ForT.

It will be interesting to recall
the historical background of the
construction of the fort at Palli-
puram. Although Vasco de Gama
anchored off Calicut on the 20th
May 1498, interviewed the Zamorin
as the representative of the King
of Portugal, and entered into
arrangements with him for opening
up trade with Malabar, he had %o
leave Calicut in August 1499, as the
Moors who monopolized the trade
r pepper and other spices did nos
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religh the competition of the Portu-
ese, and misrepresented them %o
the Zamorin a8 pirates.

Another Portuguese fleet, how-
ever, arrived at Calicut on the 15th
March 1500, under the command of
Pedro Alvarez Cabral, who con-
-cluded & treaty of friendship with
the Zamorin and opened a factory
at Calicut but who impatient that
he was not gefting the best portion
of the spice trade attacked and
sacked Calicut, killing 600 men,
and sailed south reaching Cochin
on 20th December 1500.

The Raja of Cochin whose
enemy the Zamorin was, gave the
foreigners a cordial reception and
offered them all facilities for trade.
But Cabral did not stay longenough
at Cochin, He sailed out to engage
a fleet the Zamorin had sent out %o

unish him, but unable to contact
1t set ount for Portugal without re-
furning to Cochin.

In 1602 Vasco de Gama himself
came in command of a third expedi-
tion and after attacking Calicut
and committing indescribable atro-
cities, sailed down to Cochin, esta-
blished a factory there and return-
ed to Portugal on 18t September.

The alliance between the Raija
of Cochin and the Portuguese infu-
riated the Zamorin who invaded

- Cochin and compelled the Raja to
take shelter at Vypeen. Forbun-
ately for the Raja, however, a
Portuguese fleet commanded by
Francesco de Albuquerque arrived
at Cochin on 20th September 1503.
Albuquerque drove out the Zamorin
and his forces and restored to the
Raja of Cochin his possessions.
The Raja was 8o well pleased that
he allowed the Portuguese to cons-
truct a fort at Cochin., About four
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years later permission seems to
have been granted for the construg-
tion of the fortresses of Pallipuram
and Cranganore, commanding the
entrance t0 the backwater from the
ged. :

The tiny village of Pallipuram,
the site of the fortress stands a
the northern tip of the narrow
island of Vypeen which itself lies
to the north of Cochin. The little
fortress is a hexagonal structure
about 34 feet high, each gide mea-
suring 32 feet. It is built of laterite
and the walls are six feet thick. The
building seems to have been a
three-storeyed one, the two upper
floors being supported on wooden
beams radiating from a central
granite pillar remnants of which
have been discovered.

The fortress is entered by an
arched gateway seven feet high and
five feet wide, constructed of finely
dressed granite. Inside, on the
ground floor is a platform five feet
high with a cellar underneath,
evidently used as a magazine for
storing ammunition. There is also
a well 16 feet deep. There are
eighteen embrasures on the wallg,
three on each side for the three
storeys, showing that the fortress
could mount eighteen guns.

For the century and a half that
Portuguese power was ascendant
on the Malabar Coast, Pallipuram
remained in the hands of the Portu-
guese. Butin the wars of 1662 and
1663 they were overthrown by the
Duteh who thus became masters of
all Portugnese possessions in Mala-
bar, including, of courge, the fort
at Pallipuram.

In 1766, Haider Ali of Mysore
started negotiations with the Dutch
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for the purchase of tha forts of
Cranganore and Pallipnram (the
latter referred to as Azhikottai or
Ayakottai—the fortress at the Azhi
or bar) as they stood at key points
in the approach to Cochin and Tra-
vancore which Haider wanted to
invade ; but the negotiations some-
how fizzled out. But when Tippu,
Haider’s son, began to make active
preparations for the invasion of
Travancore, it 'became imperative
for this State to-possess these forts
which flanked the defence of the
Travancore lines. In 1789 Tippu
himself opened negotiations with
the Dutch fto purchase the forts.
The Maharaja of Travancore imme-
diately deputed  Dewan Kesava
Pillai to negotiate with the Duteh
Governor for the same purpose,
and an agreement was executed on
the 318t July 1789, by which *‘the
Dewan Kesava Pillai bought for his
Master, and the Hon’ble Governor
Van Angelbeck on the part of the
(Dutch East India) Company sold
to the King of Travancore, for the
just sum of three hundred thou-
sand Surat Rupees, the Fort of
Cranganore and the Post of Aya-
kotta, with the cannon amd ordi-
nance belonging to them as they

now stand together, with the
powder magazine, though no small
arms or any other effects, and
further the following lands and
gardens.”’ A list of ten such gar-
dens is given, together with the
amounts for which they were
leased.

Among the more important comn -
‘ditions nnder which the sale was
effected was the following :—

““The King of Travancore shall
not hinder the navigation of the
river past the fort, either to the
company’s vessels or to the vessels
of the King of Cochin or their sub-
jects, whether the same be empty
or loaded with rice, paddy or goods
of any description, as also all floats.
of wood and bamboos ete., in a.
word alli goods whatever withoub
exception shall pags and.repass free-
and without <hindrance nor shall

there be any new tax put upon
them.”” - '

The agreement was negobiated
in the Fort of Cochin in the pre-
sence of Powney, British Resident
in Travancors, and & sum of Rs.
50,000 was paid before taking pos-
gession of the forts, the balance
being agreed to be paid in four
equal annual instalments *‘ by fur--

nishing an account of pepper -
annuafly to the amount of Rs.
62,600."

It was thus that the northern
third of the small village of Palli-
puram with its historie little fort-
ress came into Travancor’e posses-
sion. g

Since 1870, Government have
taken over the direct management
of the lands at Pallipuram which
were till then leaged out for various

eriods, and the fortress, the oldest

nropean-built fortification extant
in India and dumb witness of his-
tory in the making for over 400
years, is preserved and maintained
as an ancient monument-
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